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OITA BANK PROFILE

The Oita Bank, Ltd., was founded in 1893 in
Oita Prefecture, Kyushu, in the southwest of
the Japanese archipelago. For more than a
century, the Bank has provided outstanding
financial services to individual and corporate
clients, contributing significantly to the eco-
nomic growth and prosperity of Oita Prefec-
ture and the greater Kyushu region.

In Oita Prefecture, there was a steady stream
of capital investment from some of the world’s
most prominent enterprises in the high-tech
and automotive industries, which has had a
major impact on the economy of the prefecture.
At the same time, the prefecture continues to
reinforce infrastructure to support its develop-
ment as a hub of international business.

As the leading bank native to Oita Prefec
ture, the Oita Bank strives to strengthen its
management structure and enhance financial

services, thereby contributing to the region’s

prosperity.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Subsidiaries
Years Ended March 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Millions of Yen

2013 2012 2011

DIPOSIES ... eeeeeeee e eeeeee oo eeeeee oottt ¥2,577,829 ¥2.520,402 ¥2 485319
Loans and bills diSCOUNTEd .............ocoiiiiiiiii e 1,635,726 1,622,743 1,679,742
INVESTMENE SECUTTLIES ... 1,033,485 974,925 855,254
COMIMON SLOCK ... 19,598 19,598 19,598
TOLAL EQUILY ... 163,264 149,982 138,895
TOUAl ASSEUS ... 2,864,605 2,781,917 2,737,641
NEETICOINC ... 7,206 6,199 6,013
Number of branches (Nonconsolidated).................o.cooo oot 103 103 103
Number of employees (Nonconsolidated) ............ocooriiiiiiiiii e 1,777 1,693 1,646
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Note: All graph figures are for the years ended March 31.
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A MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGEMENT

Working with the Regional Community toward Further Growth

Since its founding in 1893, the Oita Bank has continued to operate
as a regional financial institution, celebrating its 120th anniversary of
establishment on February 1, 2013. We extend our warmest thanks
to all our stakeholders for your support over the years.

The Oita Bank is currently putting its all into initiatives related to
the Medium-Term Management Plan 2011, which launched in April
2011. As a result of these activities, we posted consolidated net in-
come of ¥7.2 billion in FY2012, ended March 31, 2013.

The management philosophy of the Oita Bank is “To make ev-
ery effort to contribute to the prosperity of the regional community
through banking operations.” We understand that our development
is inextricably linked to the growth and welfare of Oita Prefecture. To
put our management philosophy into action at an advanced level and

2 THE OITA BANK, LTD.

emphasize the sustainable development of the regional community,
our employees are all pulling together in line with the fundamental
policy of the Medium-Term Management Plan, namely, providing fi-
nancing that is closely tailored to the needs of the regional community.

FY2012 Consolidated Operating Performance

In FY2012, the Oita Bank’s executives and regular employees worked
together in a challenging operating environment to deliver the fol-
lowing business results.

Deposits
As of March 31, 2013, total deposits, including negotiable certificates
of deposit, amounted to ¥2,577.8 billion, up ¥57.4 billion from a

year earlier.



Loans
Total loans outstanding amounted to ¥1,635.7 billion on March 31,
2013, up ¥12.9 billion from one year earlier.

Marketable Securities

As a result of the Bank’s efforts to forge a balance between stability
and profitability, marketable securities on March 31, 2013, totaled
¥1,033.4 billion, ¥58.5 billion higher than the previous fiscal year-end.

Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange transactions, including international trade trans-
actions, overseas remittances and foreign currency deposits, totaled
US$2,385 million, $314 million higher than the previous fiscal
year-end.

Earnings

Within the ordinary profit category, net other operating profit rose,
due to an increase in gain on sales of Japanese government and other
bonds. However, decreases in interest on loans and discounts and the
gain on reserve for possible loan losses resulted in a ¥2,885 million
fall in ordinary income to ¥10,213 million. Net income advanced
¥1,007 million to ¥7,206 million.

Dividend Policy

In due consideration of its responsibility to the public as a financial
institution, the Bank’s fundamental dividend policy is stable and con-
tinuous profit distribution. To this end, we are striving to strengthen
its financial structure by reinforcing the long-term stability of its
management base, improving management efficiency and building
sufficient reserves.

In FY2012, we awarded a commemorative dividend of ¥1 per
share to express our gratitude to shareholders. As a result, the Bank’s
annual dividend was ¥7.00 per share (including an interim dividend
per share of ¥3.00).

Capital Adequacy Ratio
As of March 31, 2013, the Bank’s capital adequacy ratio was 12.27%
on a non-consolidated basis and 12.96% on a consolidated basis,
both of which easily exceed the domestic standard of 4%.

For customers to be able do transactions with us with peace of
mind, we will strive to further increase our capital adequacy and

strengthen our management structure.

Credit Rating
On September 29, 2000, the Bank attained an A+ long-term pre-
ferred debt rating from Japan Credit Rating Agency, Ltd. JCR), and
the Bank has maintained that rating to the present.

Given that “A+” is the highest of the three kinds of “A,” the JCR
rating attests to the stability and soundness of the Oita Bank.

Medium- to Long-Term Management Strategy
Medium-Term Management Plan 2011 (April 1, 2011, through
March 31, 2014)

The operating environment surrounding regional financial institu-
tions is increasingly fierce as cross-regional and cross-industry com-
petition has intensified. To respond to this rapidly changing business
environment quickly and appropriately, we moved forward with the
Medium-Term Management Plan 2011 from April 2011.

The Medium-Term Management Plan 2011 defines the Bank’s
fundamental policy as providing financing that is closely tailored to
the needs of the regional community. The three pillars for achieving
this objective are to “strengthen human resources and organizational

» o«

prowess,” “reinforce management structure” and “bolster our sales
infrastructure,” for which we are making concerted efforts to achieve
various measures.

By further enhancing relationships with customers and aggres-
sively supporting their business development and lives, the Bank in-
tends to boost its own earning capabilities and foster a solid manage-

ment foundation.

(1) “Strengthen human resources and organizational prowess”
Strengthen our OJT promotion system to cultivate the banking per-
sonnel needed to meet the needs of our customers and cultivate a
spirit of challenge.

(2) “Reinforce the management structure”
Promote operating efficiency and establish a profit management
structure and foster system collaboration.

(3) “Bolster our sales infrastructure”
Through our business activities designed to invigorate the overall
community, we will provide services that impress our customers. We

are building structures to achieve these goals.

Conclusion

Oita Bank recognizes its responsibilities as a regional bank with Oita

Prefecture as its base of operations. Accordingly, we work proactively to

contribute to the regional community through our banking operations.
We ask our stakeholders for their understanding and support of

the Bank’s endeavors.

August 2013

Shoji Himeno
President

- Himra
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
March 31, 2013

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2013 2012 2013
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks (Notes 19 and 21) .........oooiiiiii e ¥ 59,807 ¥ 42204 $ 635,906
Call10A0S (NOLE 21) oo 50,000 58,000 531,632
Commercial paper and other debt purchased (Note 4) 16,315 11,810 173,471
Trading account SeCUritieS (INOTE 4) .........iiiiiiiiiiiii ittt ettt 8 66 85
Money held in trust (INOTE 5)....c.oouiiiiiiiiiitii it 4,889 4,794 51,982
Investment securities (Notes 4, 10 and 21) .. ..o o 1,033,485 974,925 10,988,676
Loans and bills discounted (Notes 6, 11 and 21)............ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee 1,635,726 1,622,743 17,392,089
Foreign eXChange asSets..............oiiiiiiiiiiii i 3,773 3,908 40,116
Lease receivables and leased investment assets (Notes 10 and 20) ..........cc.oooiiiiiiiiieiiieei, 14,890 14,703 158,320
Other assets (INOTES 10) ... 22,395 22,496 238,118
Premises and equIPMeNt (NOLE 7) ......o.oiiiiiiiiiieitiieit oottt 37,514 38,219 398,872
Intangible assets (INOTE 8) ... o.iiiiiiiioiiiti ittt 6,519 5,050 69,314
Deferred tax assets (NOLE L7) .. .o oo 2,975 7,686 31,632
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and guarantees (Note 9) 18,262 20,111 194,173
Reserve for possible loan losses (INOte 21) .........ociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (41,958) (44,803) (446,124)
TOTAL .o et ¥2,864,605 ¥2,781,917 $30,458,320
LIABILITIES:
Deposits (Notes 10, 12 and 21) ...o.ooioiiiiiiie i ¥2,577,829 ¥2,520,402 $27,409,133
CAll TIOTIEY ...ttt 17,869 5,753 189,994
Payables under securities lending transactions (Note 10).........cccovviiiioiiiiiiioiiieiieene 13,287 8,925 141,275
Borrowed money (Notes 10, 13 and 21)........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 22,922 32,276 243,721
Foreign exchange labilities ...............ocooiiiiii e 18 31 191
Other HabilitIes. .........ooiiii it 33,005 25,194 350,930
Liability for retirement benefits (Note 14) .... 10,395 10,889 110,526
Reserve for reimbursement of dePOSILS ..........ooviiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,691 1,856 17,979
Deferred tax Habilities (INOTE L7).....cee et 1 10
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation excess ... 6,035 6,456 64,167
Negative GOOAWILL.......oooiiiii e 22 37 233
Acceptances and guarantees (INOTE 9) ..........ociiiiiiiiiiiiiot ettt 18,262 20,111 194,173
Total HADIIIEES ... 2,701,341 2,631,934 28,722,392
EQUITY (Notes 15 and 25):
6542 sharea 3012, 000:000 shares:ssued, 106430342 shares n 2013 and 19,508 19,598 208,378
CaPItAl SUTPIUS ... e 10,745 10,745 114,247
Stock acquisition rights (Note 16) 38 404
Retained earnings 96,643 90,935 1,027,570
Treasury stock- at cost, 1,283,927 shares in 2013 and 1,821,929 shares in 2012 ................ (372) (548) (3,955)
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities (NOte 4)..........ccoovoioiiiioiiiiiiiiee e 22,853 12,554 242,987
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting .................ccocoooioiiiiinininiee, (1,454) (1,172) (15,459)
Land TeVAlUATION EXCESS ... .oeivveiiieis ettt 9,224 9,940 98,075
TOTALL ..o 157,276 142,052 1,672,259
IMITIOTILY TIEET@SES ...ttt 5,987 7,929 63,657
TOtAl @QUILY ...t 163,264 149,082 1,735,927
DO T AL s ¥2.,864,605 ¥2,781917 $30,458,320

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2013

Millions of Yen

Thousands of

U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2013 2012 2013
INCOME:
Interest on:
Loans and diSCOUNTS ... .. ..ooi i ¥25,886 ¥27.487 $275,236
10,522 11,088 111,876
48 29 510
Total interest income..... 36,458 38,605 387,644
Fees and commissions....... 7,357 7,507 78,224
Other operating income ...............c..c......... 10,311 8,408 109,633
Reversal of reserve for possible loan losses. 3914
Gain on negative goOdWill.............ooiiiiii i 1,371 14,577
ONET TNCOMMIE ... 2,712 1,552 28,835
TOtal INCOMIE ... 58,210 59,988 618,926
EXPENSES:
Interest on:
DIRPOSIES ... 1,671 1,994 17,767
Borrowings and TediSCOUNLES ..ottt 396 398 4,210
Other . 509 514 5,412
TOtAl INLETESE EXPETISES ........oeeieitii ittt ettt 2,577 2,908 27,400
Fees and COMIMISSIONS ...........oiiiiii oo 1,434 1,400 15,247
Other operating expenses 7,592 7,612 80,723
General and administrative expenses 31,855 32,191 338,702
ORET EXPETISES. ...ttt 1,975 4,134 20,999
Provision for possible loan losses . 1,855 19,723
TOLAL EXPOIISES ...ttt 47,290 48,246 502,817
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTERESTS ................................ 10,919 11,741 116,097
INCOME TAXES (Note 17):
Current .... 4,080 1,441 43,381
Deferred .....coooovvvveeiiie . (850) 3,738 (9,037)
Total income taxes 3,230 5,180 34,343
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS .... 7,689 6,561 81,754
MINORITY INTERESTS IN NET INCOME ........... 482 362 5,124
NET INCOME . ... .o e ¥ 7,206 ¥ 6,199 $ 76,618
Yen U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Note 2.1):
BASIC TIOL ITCOIMMIC ... e ¥ 43.48 ¥ 36.61 $ 0.46
Diluted Nt INCOMIE ... 43.43 0.46
Cash dividends applicable to the year...................iiiiii 7.00 6.00 0.07
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2013
Millions of Yen 6 T it
2013 2012 2013
NET INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS ¥ 7,689 ¥ 6,561 $ 81,754
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Note 18):
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities...............ococoooioiiiiiiiiiii e 10,315 4811 109,675
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting ..............c..ccocooioiiiiiiiiiiiiiii (281) (429) (2,987)
Land revaluation excess 088
Total other comprehensive income... 10,034 5,371 106,687
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ... ¥17,723 ¥11,932 $188.442
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
OWNETS Of the PATETIL........iviiiiiii ettt ¥17,223 ¥11,546 $183,125
IMINOTILY TIEETESES ...ttt ettt ettt et e et e e e 500 386 5,316
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
THE OITA BANK, LTD.




Consolidated Statement of

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Year Ended March 31, 2013

Changes in Equity

Thousands Millions of Yen
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
Outstanding Unrealized  Deferred
Number of Gain on Loss on
Shares of Stock Available-  Derivatives Land
Common Common Capital  Acquisition for-Sale  under Hedge Revaluation Minority Total
Stock Stock Surplus Rights Securities  Accounting  Excess Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2011 168,963  ¥19,598 ¥10,745 ¥ 7,766 ¥ (743) ¥9,784 ¥131343 ¥7,551 ¥138,895
Net income 6,199 6,199
Cash dividends, ¥6.00 per share (1,028) (1,028)
Purchase of treasury stock @ (1) (@)
Disposal of treasury stock 658 0) 192 192
Transfer from land revaluation excess 832 832
Transfer to capital surplus from 0
retained earnings
Net change in the year 4,787 (429) 156 4514 378 4,803
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012 169,614 19,598 10,745 12,554 (1,172) 9,940 142,052 7,929 149,982
Net income 7,206 7,206
Cash dividends, ¥6.00 per share (1,013) (1,013)
Purchase of treasury stock (5,014) (1,186) (1,186)
Disposal of treasury stock 552 0) 161 161
Retirements of treasury stock (1,201)
(5,000,000 shares of common stock)
Transfer from land revaluation excess 716 716
Transfer to capital surplus from 1201
retained earnings ’
Net change in the year ¥38 10,298 (281) (716) 9,339 (1,942) 7,397
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013 165,152 ¥19,598 ¥10,745 ¥38 ¥ (372) ¥22.853 ¥(1.454) ¥9.224 ¥157,276 ¥5987 ¥163,264
Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
Unrealized ~ Deferred
Gain on Loss on
Stock Available-  Derivatives Land
Common  Capital  Acquisition for-Sale  under Hedge Revaluation Minority Total
Stock Surplus Rights Securities  Accounting  Excess Total Interests Equity
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012 $208,378  $114,247 $(5,826) $133,482  $(12,461) $105,688 $1,510,388  $84,306 $1,594,704
Net income 76,618 76,6018
Cash dividends, $0.06 per share (10,770) (10,770)
Purchase of treasury stock (12,610) (12,610)
Disposal of treasury stock (0) 1,711 1,711
Retirements of treasury stock (12,769)
(5,000,000 shares of common stock)
Transfer from land revaluation excess 7612 7,612
Transfer to capital surplus from 12769

retained earnings
Net change in the year
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

6 THE OITA BANK, LTD.

$404

109,494 (2,987) (7,612) 99,298

(20,648) 78,649

$208378  $114,247

$404 $1,027,570

$242,987  $(15,459)  $98,075 $1,672,259

$63,057 $1,735,927




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2013

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

2013 2012 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Income before income taxes and MINOTILY INLETESTS ........oviviiiiiiiieiiieiieieceec e ¥ 10919 ¥ 11,741 $ 116,097
Adjustments for:
Income taxes-refunded 613 6,517
Income taxes-paid ........................ (1,163) (4,928) (12,365)
Depreciation and amortization ..... 3,226 3,433 34,300
Impairment l0sses ...............c.ccooee.v. 427 1,231 4,540
Accumulation of negative goodwill... (14) (14) (148)
Gain on negative goodwill ........................ (1,371) (14,577)
Decrease in reserve for possible 10an 10SSes..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii (2,844) (5,963) (30,239)
Increase (decrease) in liability for retirement benefits ... (494) 125 (5,252)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for reimbursement of deposits (165) 48 (1,754)
Interest iNCOME-aCCTUEA DASIS.......eee e (36,458) (38,605) (387,644)
Interest eXpenses-acCrued DASIS ...........ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 2,577 2,908 27,400
Net (gain) loss on investment securities.. (1,234) 1,857 (13,120)
Net gain on money held in trUSt..........ooiiiiiiiiii e (239) (33) (2,541)
Foreign exchange (£ains) L0SSES.........c.coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i (18) 3 (191)
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 237 125 2,519
Net (increase) decrease in trading account securities 57 (39) 606
Net (increase) decrease in loans and bills discounted .......................oocoii (12,983) 56,999 (138,043)
Net increase in deposits............ccooiviiiiiirieiaiiiiiiieie, 57,426 35,083 610,590
Net increase (decrease) in borrowed money (9,353) 7,984 (99.,447)
Net (increase) decrease in due from banks (excluding due from The Bank of Japan).......... (338) 551 (3,593)
Net decrease in call 10anS .. ..ot 3,495 18,027 37,161
Net increase (decrease) in call money 12,116 (14,202) 128,825
Net increase in payables under securities lending transactions 4,361 8,925 46,368
Net (increase) decrease in foreign exchange assets 134 (216) 1,424
Net decrease in foreign exchange liabilities..............ccocooooeiinn. (12) 6) (127)
Net increase in lease receivables and leased investment assets (187) (15) (1,988)
Interest income-cash basis....................coooiii 36,508 38,158 388,176
Interest expenses-cash basis (2,926) (3,207) (31,111)
Other-net ........coooovvviiiiiieee 4,006 3,930 42,594
TOtal AdJUSTIMETIES ...ttt 55,382 112,160 588,856
Net cash provided by oOperating aCtivities .................oouoiioiiiiiiii it 66,302 123,902 704,965
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of INVESIMENT SECUTILICS ... ...eoeeiee ittt (383,054) (284,488) (4,072,876)
Proceeds from sales of investment securities 202,681 45,472 2,155,034
Proceeds from maturities of iINVeStmMent SECUTILIES ............ccovieeiie e 138,764 124,287 1,475,427
Purchases of premises and equipment (2,856) (3,118) (30,366)
Purchases of intangible assets (2,469) (3,020) (26,251)
Proceeds from sales of premises and eqUIPIMENT ............ccooiiiioiiiiiiiieii e 823 394 8,750
Proceeds from sales of intangible assets 176 6 1,871
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries (1,063) (11,302)
Payments for execution of asset retirement obligations #
Net cash used in INVeStNG ACHVILIES. .......c..ouiiiiiiiiiiiiii i (46,998) (120,471) (499,712)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
DIVIAENAS PAIA - (1,011) (1,028) (10,749)
Dividends paid by consolidated subsidiaries to minority shareholders @) @) (74)
Repayment of lease obligations........ (15) (@) (159)
Purchases of treasury stock................. (1,186) (1) (12,610)
Proceeds from sales of treasury SLOCK...............o.ooooi i 161 150 1,711
Net cash used in fiNANCING ACHVITIES ... e.vvuvviiiiiititeieeic e (2,058) (894) (21,881)
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS ... o..coooooeeooo oo oo 18 3) 191
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ....... 17,264 2,533 183,561
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR ......... 40,697 38,164 432,716
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR (Note 19) ¥ 57,961 ¥ 40,697 $ 616,278

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

THE OITA BANK, LTD. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Year Ended March 31, 2013

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of THE OITA BANK,
LTD. (the “Bank”) and its nine consolidated subsidiaries have been pre-
pared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial
Instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and
the Enforcement Regulation for the Banking Law of Japan (the “Banking
Law”), and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the application and
disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifica-
tions and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial
statements issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is
more familiar to readers outside Japan.

The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the
currency of the country in which the Bank is incorporated and operates.
Amounts of less than one million yen have been omitted in the accom-
panying consolidated financial statements as permitted by the Japanese
Financial Instruments and Exchange Act. Consequently, the totals shown
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements do not necessarily
agree with the sums of the individual amounts.

The translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are
included solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan and have been
made at the rate of ¥94.05 to $1, the approximate rate of exchange at
March 31, 2013. Such translation should not be construed as representa-
tion that the Japanese yen amounts could be converted into U.S. dollars at
that or any other rate.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of the Bank and its nine significant subsidiaries (together, “the
Companies”). The fiscal periods of all consolidated subsidiaries end on
March 31.

Under the control or influence concept, those companies in which
the Bank, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over opera-
tions are fully consolidated.

Investments in the remaining unconsolidated subsidiaries are stated
at cost. If the equity method of accounting had been applied to the
investments in these companies, the effect on the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements would not be material.

Any material deficiency of the cost of the Bank’s investments in sub-
sidiaries over its equity in the net assets at the respective dates of acqui-
sition is being amortized over a period of ten years. Other deficiencies
or excesses are credited or charged to income when incurred.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation. All material unrealized profit included in
assets resulting from transactions within the Companies is eliminated.

b. Business Combinations - In October 2003, the Business Accounting
Council (the “BAC”) issued a Statement of Opinion, “Accounting for
Business Combinations”, and in December 2005, the Accounting Stan-
dards Board of Japan (the “ASBJ”) issued ASBJ Statement No. 7, “Ac-
counting Standard for Business Divestitures” and ASB] Guidance No. 10,
“Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and
Business Divestitures”. The accounting standard for business combina-
tions allowed companies to apply the pooling of interests method of
accounting only when certain specific criteria are met such that the
business combination is essentially regarded as a uniting-of-interests.
For business combinations that do not meet the uniting-of-interests
criteria, the business combination is considered to be an acquisition
and the purchase method of accounting is required. This standard also
prescribes the accounting for combinations of entities under common
control and for joint ventures.

In December 2008, the ASBJ issued a revised accounting standard
for business combinations, ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting Stan-
dard for Business Combinations.” Major accounting changes under the
revised accounting standard are as follows: (1) The revised standard
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requires accounting for business combinations only by the purchase
method. As a result, the pooling of interests method of accounting is
no longer allowed. (2) The current accounting standard accounts for
the research and development costs to be charged to income as in-
curred. Under the revised standard, in-process research and develop-
ment (IPR&D) acquired in the business combination are capitalized as
an intangible asset. (3) The previous accounting standard provided for
a bargain purchase gain (negative goodwill) to be systematically amor-
tized over a period not exceeding 20 years. Under the revised standard,
the acquirer recognizes the bargain purchase gain in profit or loss im-
mediately on the acquisition date after reassessing and confirming that
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed have been
identified after a review of the procedures used in the purchase price
allocation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For the purpose of reporting cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash and amounts due from the
Bank of Japan.

. Trading Account Securities - Trading account securities, which are held

for the purpose of earning capital gains in the near term, are reported
at fair value and the related unrealized gains and losses are included in
earnings. The cost of trading account securities sold is determined by
the moving-average method.

. Investment Securities and Money Held in Trust - All applicable se-

curities are classified and accounted for, depending on management’s
intent, as follows:

() held-to-maturity debt securities, which are expected to be held
to maturity with the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
reported at amortized cost, and (ii) available-for-sale securities, which
are not classified as either of trading account securities or held-to-ma-
turity debt securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains
and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported in a separate component of
equity. The cost of available-for-sale securities sold is determined based
on the moving-average method.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost or am-
ortized cost determined by the moving-average method.

For other than temporary declines in fair value, investment securities
are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

Securities managed through money held in trust accounts are report-

ed at fair value and the related unrealized gains and losses are included
in earnings.
Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation of premises and equip-
ment is principally computed using the declining-balance method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets and depreciation of leased prem-
ises and equipment is provided on the straight-line method over the
lease periods.

. Software - Cost of computer software obtained for internal use is am-

ortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
five years.

. Long-Lived Assets - The Companies review their long-lived assets for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstance indicate the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset
or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows
expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition
of the asset or asset group. The impairment loss would be measured
as the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of the discounted cash flows
from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset or the net
selling price at disposition.
Land Revaluation - Under the “Law of Land Revaluation”, the Bank
elected a one-time revaluation of its own-use land to a value based on
real estate appraisal information as of March 31, 1998.

The resulting land revaluation excess represents unrealized appre-
ciation of land and is stated, net of income taxes, as a component of
equity. There was no effect on the statement of income. Continuous



readjustment is not permitted unless the land value subsequently de-
clines significantly such that the amount of the decline in value should
be removed from the land revaluation excess account and related de-
ferred tax liabilities.

As March 31, 2013 and 2012, the carrying amount of the land after

the above one-time revaluation exceeded the market value by ¥12,528
million ($133,205 thousand) and ¥12,915 million, respectively.
Foreign Currency Items - All assets and liabilities denominated in for-
eign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the current exchange
rates at each balance sheet date.
. Reserve for Possible Loan Losses - The Bank determines the amount
of the reserve for possible loan losses by means of management’s judg-
ment and assessment of future losses based on the self-assessment sys-
tem. This system reflects past experience of credit losses, possible credit
losses, business and economic conditions, the character, quality and
performance of the portfolio, and other pertinent indicators.

The Bank implemented the self-assessment system for its asset qual-
ity. The quality of all loans are assessed by branches and the credit
supervisory division with a subsequent audit by the Bank’s asset review
and inspection division in accordance with the Bank’s policy and rules
for self-assessment of asset quality.

The Bank has established a credit rating system under which its cus-
tomers are classified into five categories. The credit rating system is
used for self-assessment of asset quality. All loans are classified into
five categories for self assessment purposes such as “normal”, “caution”,
“possible bankruptcy”, “virtual bankruptey” and “legal bankruptcy”.

Reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the actual past
loss ratio for normal and caution categories, and the fair value of the
collateral for collateral-dependent loans and other factors of solvency
including value of future cash flows for other self assessment categories.
For loans such as possible bankruptcy, the reserve for possible loan
losses is provided for in an amount deemed necessary to cover possible
losses on loans considering the customer’s solvency and other factors,
after the estimated fair value of the collateral real estate or guaranteed
amount has been deducted. For loans such as virtual bankruptcy or
legal bankruptcy, the reserve for possible loan losses is provided based
upon the loan amount, after the estimated fair value of the collateral
real estate or guaranteed amount has been deducted.

In addition, for loans which were mainly classified into possible
bankruptcy and restructured loans as defined in Note 6 below, if the
exposure to an obligor exceeds a certain specific amount and if future
cash flows of the principal and interest can be reasonably estimated, the
discounted cash flow method is used to calculate the reserve for pos-
sible loan losses, under which method the reserve is determined as the
difference between the book value of the loan and the present value of
future cash flows discounted using the contractual interest rate before
the loan was classified as one of the above loans.

The consolidated subsidiaries determine the amount of the reserve for
possible loan losses by a comparable self-assessment system as the Bank.
Retirement and Pension Plans - The Bank has a contributory funded pen-
sion plan and an unfunded retirement benefit plan. Consolidated subsid-
iaries have unfunded retirement benefit plans. The amount of liability
for employees’ retirement benefit is determined based on the projected
benefit obligations and the pension assets at the balance sheet date. Prior
service cost is amortized using the straight-line method over ten years.
Net actuarial gain or loss is amortized using the straight-line method over
ten years commencing from the next fiscal year of occurrence.

Retirement benefits to directors and Audit & Supervisory Board
members are provided at the amount, which would be required, if all
directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members retired at the bal-
ance sheet date.

The Bank terminated its retirement benefits plan for directors and
Audit & Supervisory Board members at the Bank’s general shareholders
meeting held on June 26, 2012. The balance of retirement benefits for
directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members as of June 26, 2012,
was reclassified to other liabilities in the year ended March 31, 2013.

m. Stock Options - In December 2005, the ASBJ issued ASBJ Statement

No. 8, “Accounting Standard for Stock Options” and related guidance.
The new standard and guidance are applicable to stock options newly
granted on and after May 1, 2006. This standard requires companies
to measure the cost of employee stock options based on the fair value
at the date of grant and recognize compensation expense over the vest-
ing period as consideration for receiving goods or services. The stan-
dard also requires companies to account for stock options granted to
non-employees based on the fair value of either the stock option or
the goods or services received. In the balance sheet, the stock option
is presented as a stock acquisition right as a separate component of
equity until exercised. The standard covers equity-settled, share-based
payment transactions, but does not cover cash-settled, share-based pay-
ment transactions. In addition, the standard allows unlisted companies
to measure options at their intrinsic value if they cannot reliably esti-
mate fair value.

. Reserve for Reimbursement of Deposits - Reserve for reimbursement of

deposits is provided for the deposits derecognized from the liabilities at
the estimated amount of future claims for withdrawal.

. Leases - As Lessor, lease revenue is recognized at the date of each lease

payment according to the lease contracts.
As Lessee, all finance lease transactions are capitalized to recognize
lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet.

. Derivatives and Method of Hedge Accounting - The Bank’s policy is

to use derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”) primarily for the
purpose of reducing market risks associated with its assets and liabili-
ties. The Bank also utilizes derivatives as a part of its trading activities.
Consolidated subsidiaries do not utilize any derivatives.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps as a means of hedging its in-
terest rate risk on certain loans and investment securities. The Bank also
enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and currency swaps, fu-
tures and options to hedge exchange risk associated with its assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

The Bank applies deferred hedge accounting, which is stipulated in
the “Treatment of Accounting and Auditing of Application of Account-
ing Standard for Financial Instruments in the Banking Industry” (the
Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “JICPA”) Indus-
try Audit Committee, Report No. 24), to the interest risk caused by its
financial assets and liabilities.

In evaluating the effectiveness of a hedge, the hedged item, such as
loans and deposits, and the hedge instruments, such as interest rate
swaps, are specified and evaluated regarding the hedging approach. Ef-
fectiveness of the hedging approach is evaluated by verifying the corre-
lation of the interest fluctuation factor of the hedged item and the hedge
instruments.

. Accounting for Trust-type Employee Stock Ownership Incentive Plan

- The Bank introduced an incentive plan for employees named the “Em-
ployee Stock Ownership Plan Trust” (ESOP Trust) and entered into a
trust agreement with trustee on November 15, 2010.

Because the Bank guarantees the liability of the ESOP Trust, the
ESOP Trust is substantially a part of the Bank and is treated as the same
entity for accounting purposes. Accordingly, stocks held by the ESOP
Trust are recognized and treated as treasury stock and assets, liabilities
and expenses of the ESOP Trust are included in the accompanying con-
solidated financial statements.

. Per Share Information - The weighted average number of shares of

common stock used in the computation of basic net income per share
during the year excludes treasury stock held by the Bank in its own
name, as well as shares of treasury stock owned by the ESOP Trust
(1,465 thousand shares and 2,089 thousand shares for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively). The average number of com-
mon shares used in the computation was 165,741 thousand shares
and 169,286 thousand shares for the years ended March 31,2013 and
2012, respectively.

Diluted net income per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if the outstanding stock options were exercised. Diluted
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net income per share assumes full exercise of the outstanding stock op-

tions at the beginning of the year (or at the time of grant).

Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consoli-
dated statement of income are dividends applicable to the respective
year including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - In December 2009, the
ASB]J issued ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting Standard for Account-
ing Changes and Error Corrections” and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, “Guid-
ance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Cor-
rections.” Accounting treatments under this standard and guidance are
as follows: (1) Changes in Accounting Policies-When a new accounting
policy is applied following revision of an accounting standard, the new
policy is applied retrospectively unless the revised accounting stan-
dard includes specific transitional provisions, in which case the entity
shall comply with the specific transitional provisions. (2) Changes in
Presentation-When the presentation of financial statements is changed,
prior-period financial statements are reclassified in accordance with the
new presentation. (3) Changes in Accounting Estimates-A change in
an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the change if
the change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively
if the change affects both the period of the change and future periods.
(4) Corrections of Prior-Period Errors-When an error in prior-period
financial statements is discovered, those statements are restated.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits - On May 17, 2012, the

ASB] issued ASB] Statement No. 26, “Accounting Standard for Retire-

ment Benefits” and ASB] Guidance No. 25, “Guidance on Accounting

Standard for Retirement Benefits,” which replaced the Accounting Stan-

dard for Retirement Benefits that had been issued by the Business Ac-

counting Council in 1998 with effective date of April 1, 2000, and the
other related practical guidances, and followed by partial amendments

from time to time through 2009.

Major changes are as follows:

(a) Treatment in the balance sheet

Under the current requirements, actuarial gains and losses and
past service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss are not
recognized in the balance sheet, and the difference between retirement
benefit obligations and plan assets (hereinafter, “deficit or surplus”), ad-
justed by such unrecognized amounts, is recognized as a liability or asset.

Under the revised accounting standard, actuarial gains and loss-
es and past service costs that are yet to be recognized in profit or loss
shall be recognized within equity (accumulated other comprehensive
income), after adjusting for tax effects, and any resulting deficit or sur-
plus shall be recognized as a liability (liability for retirement benefits)
or asset (asset for retirement benefits).

(b) Treatment in the statement of income and the statement of com-
prehensive income

The revised accounting standard does not change how to recog-

nize actuarial gains and losses and past service costs in profit or loss.
Those amounts would be recognized in profit or loss over a certain
period no longer than the expected average remaining working lives
of the employees. However, actuarial gains and losses and past service
costs that arose in the current period and have not yet been recognized
in profit or loss shall be included in other comprehensive income and
actuarial gains and losses and past service costs that were recognized
in other comprehensive income in prior periods and then recognized
in profit or loss in the current period shall be treated as reclassification
adjustments.

(c) Amendments relating to the method of attributing expected benefit
to periods and relating to the discount rate and expected future
salary increases

The revised accounting standard also made certain amendments
relating to the method of attributing expected benefit to periods and
relating to the discount rate and expected future salary increases.

This accounting standard and the guidance for (a) and (b) above are

effective for the end of annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
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2013, and for (c) above are effective for the beginning of annual peri-
ods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, or for the beginning of annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, subject to certain disclo-
sure in March 2015, both with earlier application being permitted from
the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2013.
However, no retrospective application of this accounting standard to
consolidated financial statements in prior periods is required.

The Bank expects to apply the revised accounting standard for (a) and
(b) above from the end of the annual period beginning on April 1,
2013, and for (¢) above from the beginning of the annual period begin-
ning on April 1, 2014, and is in the process of measuring the effects of
applying the revised accounting standard in future applicable periods.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

On September 28, 2012, the Bank acquired additional shares of OITA
LEASE Co., Ltd., OITA CARD Co., Ltd. and OITA HOSYO SERVICE Co.,
Ltd., which are consolidated subsidiaries, owned by minority shareholders
in exchange for cash in the amount of ¥1,063 million ($11,302 thousand)
to strengthen the governance through changing the of capital structure of
these companies.

The Bank accounted for this transaction as a transaction with minority
shareholders pursuant to ASBJ Statement No. 21, “Accounting Standard
for Business Combinations”, and ASB] Guidance No. 10, “Guidance on Ac-
counting Standard for Business Combinations and Business Divestitures”,
issued on December 26, 2008.

The Bank recognized a gain on negative goodwill of ¥1,371 million
($14,577 thousand) arising from the transaction, since the acquisition cost
of the subsidiary’s shares from minority shareholders was lower than the
decreased amount of minority interests (Note 2.b.).

n TRADING ACCOUNT SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Trading account securities at March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of Japa-
nese government bonds and local government bonds.

Investment securities at March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the fol-
lowing:

Millions of Yen brestacs of

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Japanese government bonds ...... ¥ 405,582 ¥402,156 $ 4,312,408
Local government bonds.... 108,082 115,398 1,149,197
Debentures .........c.occoevveeveeeeeenn.. 286,534 252,871 3,046,613
Equity securities............c.cococo.... 45,275 38,584 481,392
Other securities ... 188,010 165914 1,999,043
Total oo ¥1,033,485 ¥974,925  $10,988,676

The costs and aggregate fair value of securities at March 31, 2013 and
2012, were as shown in the table below. Securities below include trad-
ing account securities, investment securities and commercial paper within
“Commercial paper and other debt purchased”:

Millions of Yen

Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2013 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Trading: ¥ 8
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities................ ¥ 29,936 ¥13,870 ¥ 842 42,964
Debt securities................... 780,016 17,948 115 797,849
Other......c.ccocoovvieiiiie 181,958 4,942 1,159 185,741
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities.........c........ 2,350 20 2,370



Millions of Yen

Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2012 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Trading; ¥ 66
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities................ ¥ 20931 ¥ 7,982 ¥1,739 36,174
Debt securities................... 755,006 12,685 217 767,474
Other.........ccoooiieiii 163,590 2,560 2,239 163,911
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities.................. 2,951 18 0 2,970
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Unrealized  Unrealized Fair
March 31, 2013 Cost Gains Losses Value
Securities classified as:
Trading: $ 85
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities................ $ 318298 $147,474 $ 8,952 456,820
Debt securities. .. 8,293,631 190,834 1,222 8,483,242
Other.........cccooovviiiii 1,934,694 52,546 12,323 1,974,917
Held-to-maturity:
Debt securities................... 24,986 212 25,199

The information of available-for-sale securities which were sold during
the year ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Millions of Yen

Realized Realized
March 31, 2013 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities....................ocoooo ¥ 2257 ¥ 388 ¥345
Debt SeCUTities. .........ccoovrveiiiiieiiecein 199,148 2,144 172
1,261 79
¥202.667 ¥2.613 ¥517
Millions of Yen
Realized Realized
March 31, 2012 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities............c.ccccoioiiioinieinn. ¥ 2,027 ¥ 0 ¥1,244
Debt securities. ............ccoocooveveeeieeie 32,365 427 33
Other........ococoooiiiieee 9,657 123 691
TOtAl oot ¥44.050 ¥551 ¥1,969
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Realized Realized
March 31, 2013 Proceeds Gains Losses
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities... . $ 23,997 $ 4,125 $3,668
Debt securities. 2,117,469 22,796 1,828
Other.....ooooviiiieeeeee e 13,407 839
TOtAL oot $2,154.,885 $27,783 $5,497

Impairment losses on available-for-sale securities for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, were ¥217 million ($2,307 thousand) and
¥462 million, respectively.

Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Mo of

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Valuation differences:
Available-for-sale securities...... ¥ 34,644 ¥19,032 $368,357
Deferred tax liabilities ................ (11,762) (6,465) (125,061)

Minority interests.................... (29) 1n (308)
Net unrealized gain on
available-for sale securities........

¥ 22,853 ¥12.,554 $242,987

MONEY HELD IN TRUST

Money held in trust was all classified as trading. Net unrealized gains of
Money held in trust charged to income were ¥219 million ($2,328 thou-
sand) and ¥43 million for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

n LOANS AND BILLS DISCOUNTED
Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of
the following:

Millions of Yen Mizouserals @il

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Bills discounted. ¥ 12,021 ¥ 12,777 $ 127,814
Loans on notes .. 78,110 83,080 830,515
Loans on deeds........................... 1,385,282 1,360,929 14,729,207
Overdrafts..............cccocoeei. 160,312 165,956 1,704,540
Total oo ¥1,635,726  ¥1,622,743  $17,392,089

Bills discounted are accounted for as financial transactions in accor-
dance with JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24. The Bank has
rights to sell or pledge these bills discounted. The total of the face value of
bills discounted was ¥12,046 million ($128,080 thousand) and ¥12,785
million at March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Loans and bills discounted as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, included the
following loans:

Millions of Yen Mhousznd of

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Loans to obligors in bankruptcy .. ¥ 1,339 ¥ 5271 $ 14,237
Past due loans............................. 79,189 76,198 841,988
Restructured loans...................... 4,127 7,988 43,880
Total ..o ¥84,657 ¥89 458 $900,127

Loans to obligors in bankruptcy represent nonaccrual loans to debtors
who are legally bankrupt, which are defined in the Enforcement Ordi-
nance for the Corporation Tax Law.

Past due loans are nonaccrual loans, which include loans classified as
“possible bankruptcy” and “virtual bankruptey”.

Nonaccrual loans are defined as loans (after the partial charge-off of
claims deemed uncollectible) in which the Companies discontinue the ac-
cruing of interest income when substantial doubt is judged to exist as to
the ultimate collectability of either principal or interest if they are past due
for a certain period or for other reasons.

Accruing loans contractually past due three months or more are loans
in which the principal or interest is three months or more past due. The
Companies do not have any such loans and bills discounted.

Restructured loans, designed to assist in the recovery of the financial
soundness of debtors, are loans on which the Companies granted conces-
sions (e.g., reduction of the stated interest rate, deferral of interest pay-
ment, extension of maturity date, reduction of the face amount). Loans
classified as nonaccrual loans or accruing loans contractually past due
three months or more are excluded.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the
following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Buildings ......cooovviviiiiiiiii ¥ 7,627 ¥ 7,285 $ 81,095
Land ....cooooviiiiiiiii 25,794 26,339 274,258
Leased assets................ 22 25 233
Construction in progress 23 66 244
Other ..o 4,046 4,502 43,019
Total ..o ¥37,514 ¥38.219 $398.,872

Accumulated depreciation at March 31, 2013 and 2012, amounted to
¥37,818 million ($402,105 thousand) and ¥37,156 million, respectively.

As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, deferred gains for tax purposes of
¥1,994 million ($21,201 thousand) and ¥2,053 million, respectively, on
premises and equipment sold and replaced with similar assets have been
deducted from the cost of newly acquired premises and equipment.

The Companies review their long-lived assets for impairment continu-
ously. As of March 31, 2013 and 2012, the Bank recognized impairment
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losses of ¥427 million ($4,540 thousand) and ¥1,231 million as other ex-
pense for certain branches and idle fixed assets due to the carrying amounts
of the assets exceeded their recoverable amounts and the carrying amounts
of the relevant assets were written down to the recoverable amount.

The Companies principally group operating assets by branch office,
which is the minimum unit for management accounting and idle fixed as-
sets are individually assessed for impairment.

The recoverable amount of operating assets is measured at its net selling
price determined by quotations from third-party vendors or at the discount-
ed cash flows from the continued use and eventual disposition of the asset.
The discounted cash flows are calculated using a discount rate of 5.1%.

The recoverable amount of idle assets is measured at its net selling price
determined by quotations from third-party vendors.

EJ (NTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
SOftWaTe........vovovviveeieee ¥6,399 ¥4931 $68,038
Other .......ccccocoiviiiiiiiiiee 120 118 1,275
Total ..o ¥6,519 ¥5,050 $69,314

n CUSTOMERS’ LIABILITIES FOR ACCEPTANCES AND GUARANTEES

All contingent liabilities arising from acceptances and guarantees are re-
flected in “Acceptances and guarantees”. As a contra account, “Customers’
liabilities for acceptances and guarantees” are shown on the asset side repre-
senting the Bank’s right of indemnity from the applicants.

HY AssEts pLEDGED

Assets pledged as collateral and their relevant liabilities at March 31, 2013
and 2012, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Maowsgmils of

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013

Assets pledged as collateral:

Investment securities................ ¥81,548 ¥76,900 $867,070

Leased investment assets.......... 6,625 7,193 70,441
Relevant liabilities to above assets:

DepOSits.....cocoveuiiiiiiiiiiiii 10,961 6,717 116,544

Payables under securities

lending transactions................ 13,287 8,925 141,275

Borrowed money..................... 5,114 14,059 54,375

In addition, investment securities and others totaling ¥75,202 million
($799,595 thousand) and ¥72,424 million were pledged as collateral or se-
curity deposits for exchange settlement and futures contracts at March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

Guarantee deposits on office space amounting to ¥448 million ($4,763
thousand) and ¥463 million were included in other assets at March 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively.

m LOAN COMMITMENTS
Contracts of overdraft facilities and loan commitment limits are contracts
where the Companies lend to customers up to the prescribed limits in re-
sponse to customers’ applications for loans as long as there is no violation
of any conditions in the contracts. The unused amounts within the limits
totaled ¥555,863 million ($5,910,292 thousand) at March 31, 2013, and
¥559,052 million at March 31, 2012, for these contracts. Of the above,
the amounts for which the original agreement period was within a year or
agreements which the Companies could cancel at any time without penalty
totaled ¥546,251 million ($5,808,091 thousand) at March 31, 2013, and
¥549,930 million at March 31, 2012.

Since many of these commitments expire without being drawn upon,
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the unused amount does not necessarily represent a future cash require-
ment. Most of these contracts have conditions that the Companies can re-
fuse a customers’ application for loans or decrease the contract limits with
proper reasons (e.g., changes in financial situation, deterioration in cus-
tomers’ creditworthiness). At the inception of the contracts, the Compa-
nies obtain real estate, securities, etc. as collateral if considered necessary.
Subsequently, the Companies perform periodic reviews of the customers’
business results based on internal rules and take necessary measures to
reconsider conditions in contracts and require additional collateral and
guarantees, if necessary.

DEPOSITS
Deposits at March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Current deposits..........ccccoeurne. ¥ 89,620 ¥ 89202 $ 952,897
Ordinary deposits....................... 1,350,806 1,299,430 14,362,636
Savings at notice...............c.c....... 31,725 33,133 337,320
Deposits at notice...................... 5,223 3,039 55,534
Time deposits . 938,570 948,013 9,979,479
Installment savings..................... 8,927 9,108 94917
Negotiable certificates of deposit... 115,891 102,836 1,232,227
Other deposits............ccooviicnnee. 37,063 35,637 394,077
Total oo ¥2,577,829 ¥2520402 $27,409,133

BORROWED MONEY
Borrowed money as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Borrowings from other financial
o ¥12,922 ¥22.276 $137,395
INSHLULONS ..o
Subordinated debt..................... 10,000 10,000 106,326
Total ..o ¥22,922 ¥32.276 $243,721

The weighted average interest rate of Borrowings from other financial
institutions and Subordinated debt as of March 31, 2013 and 2012, are
0.66%, 2.13% and 0.71%, 2.21%, respectively.

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2013, for the next
five years and thereafter were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thonzzngh o

Year Ending March 31 U.S. Dollars
2014 ¥ 3,966 $ 42,169
12,132 128,995
1,577 16,767
1,183 12,578
1,685 17,916
2,377 25273
Total ..o ¥22.922 $243,721

Please see Note 10 for assets pledged as collateral and their relevant bor-
rowed money.

LIABILITY FOR RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Companies have severance payment plans for employees, directors
and Audit & Supervisory Board members. The Bank terminated its retire-
ment benefits plan for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members
at the Bank’s general shareholders meeting held on June 26, 2012.

Under most circumstances, employees whose service with the Compa-
nies is terminated are entitled to retirement and pension benefits deter-
mined by reference to base rates of pay at the time of termination, length of
service and conditions under which the termination occurs. If the termina-
tion is involuntary, caused by retirement at the mandatory retirement age
or caused by death, the employee is entitled to greater payment than in the
case of voluntary termination.



The liability for the employees’ retirement benefits at March 31, 2013
and 2012, consisted of the following:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013

Projected benefit obligation ....... ¥ 30,482 ¥ 30,077 $ 324,104
Fair value of plan assets ............. (24,043) (21,524) (255,640)
Unrecognized actuarial loss ....... (5,642) (7,015) (59,989)
Unrecognized prior service cost... 436 581 4,635

Net liability 1,232 2,117 13,099
Prepaid pension expense............ 9,127 8,330 97,044
Liability for employees’

retirement benefits ................... ¥ 10,360 ¥ 10,448 $110,154

The components of net periodic retirement benefit costs for the years
ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Tiowerrdls o

as additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus), depending
on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until
the aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals
100% of the common stock. The Companies Act also provides that com-
mon stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus
and retained earnings can be transferred among the accounts under certain
conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount avail-
able for distribution to the shareholders which is determined by specific
formula. Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are presented
as a separate component of equity. The Companies Act also provides that
companies can purchase both treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury

o3 o3 U.Sigf;lars stock. Such treasury stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate
Semvice ot . ¥ 979 ¥ 050 $10.409 component of equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.
Interest CoSt.........cocooevvereiicnnnnne 328 572 3,487
Expected return on plan asset ... (71) (115) (754) STOCK OPTIONS
Amortization of prior service cost.. (145) (242) (1,541) The stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2013, are as follows:
Recognized actuarial loss ........... 813 1,123 8,644 N
Net periodic retirement Stock Persons  of Options  Date of ~ Exercise
benefit costs.........coovveivviiinenn. ¥1,904 ¥2.288 $20,244 Option Granted Granted Grant Price Exercise Period

2012 Stock 179,700 August 6, ¥l From August 7, 2012

Assumptions used for the years ended March 31,2013 and 2012, are set
forth as follows:

2013 2012
DISCOUNLE TALE ... 1.1% 1.1%
Expected rate of return on plan assets.................. 0.5% 0.9%
Amortization period of prior service cost................ 10 years 10 years
Recognition period of actuarial gain/loss................ 10 years 10 years

The liability for retirement benefits at March 31, 2013, for directors and
Audit & Supervisory Board members of consolidated subsidiaries is ¥35
million ($372 thousand) and the liability for retirement benefits at March
31, 2012, for directors and Audit & Supervisory Board members of the
Bank and consolidated subsidiaries was ¥441 million.

EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan. The signifi-
cant provisions in the Companies Act that affect financial and accounting
matters are summarized below:

a. Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time dur-
ing the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at
the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain criteria such
as (1) having the Board of Directors, (2) having independent auditors, (3)
having the Board of Audit & Supervisory Board members, and (4) the term
of service of the directors is prescribed as one year rather than two years of
normal term by its articles of incorporation, the Board of Directors may de-
clare dividends (except for dividends-in-kind) at any time during the fiscal
year if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. How-
ever, the Bank cannot do so because it does not meet all the above criteria.

The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind
(noncash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and addi-
tional requirements.

Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon res-
olution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the
company so stipulate. The Companies Act and the Banking Law provides
certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends or the purchase
of treasury stock.

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve and Surplus
The Banking Law requires that an amount equal to 20% of dividends must
be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or

9 directors

Option shares 2012 ($0.01) to August 6, 2042

The stock option activity during the year ended March 31, 2013, was as
follows:
2012 Stock
Option
(Shares)

Year Ended March 31, 2013

Non-vested

March 31, 2012- Outstanding
Granted
Canceled
Vested

March 31, 2013- Outstanding

179,700

179,700

Vested
March 31, 2012- Outstanding

Vested

Exercised

Canceled
March 31, 2013- Outstanding
Exercise price ¥1

($0.01)

Average stock price at exercise —
Fair value price at grant date ¥215

The Assumptions Used to Measure the Fair Value of the 2012 Stock Option
Estimate method: Black-Scholes option pricing model
Volatility of stock price: 28.2%

Estimated remaining outstanding period: Three and a half years
Estimated dividend: ¥6 per share

Risk free interest rate: 10%

INCOME TAXES

The Companies are subject to Japanese national and local income taxes
which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective statutory tax rates of
approximately 37.8% for the year ended March 31, 2013, and 40.4% for
the year ended March 31, 2012.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences which resulted in de-
ferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:
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Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for possible loan losses... ¥14,872 ¥14,484 $158,128
Liability for employees’
retirement benefits.................. 3,267 3,856 34,736
2,214 2,154 23,540
5,056 4,940 53,758
(8,751) (9,362) (93,046)
Total.....oooovoiiieeeee 16,659 16,073 177,129
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities ..... 11,762 6,460 125,061
Unrealized gain on Employees’
retirement benefit trust ........... 1,857 1,857 19,744
Other ..o 65 68 691
Total coveeiiieie 13,685 8,387 145,507
Net deferred tax assets ............... ¥ 2973 ¥ 7,686 $ 31,610

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the
actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated state-
ment of income for the year ended March 31, 2013, with the correspond-
ing figures for 2012 is as follows:

2013 2012
Normal effective statutory tax rate........................ 37.8% 40.4%
Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes .. 0.8 0.9
Income not taxable for income tax purposes........ (1.8) (1.6)
Gain on negative goodwill ... “.7)
Effect of change in tax rate..........coocooveininnn, 9.9
Effect of special reconstruction corporation tax ... 2.0
Valuation allowance ..............ccccocoooeiiiiiiiiin. (5.6) 4.1)
OUeT-TEL e 1.1 a4
Actual effective tax rate ..........cccocooovviiiiiiiiiiiiin. 29.6% 44.1%

On December 2, 2011, new tax reform laws were enacted in Japan,
which changed the normal effective statutory tax rate from approximately
40.4% to 37.8% effective for the fiscal years beginning on or after April 1,
2012 through March 31, 2015, and to 35.3% afterwards.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Mizouserals el

U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year... ¥16,803 ¥ 4,483 $178,660
Reclassification adjustments to
profit or loss.......ccccccceiinine (1,190) 1,945 (12,652)
Amount before income
tax effect........cocooeviiiii 15,612 6,429 165,996
Income tax effect (5,296) (1,617) (56,310)
Total....oooviceiiieeeeee ¥10,315 ¥4.811 $109,675
Deferred loss on derivatives
under hedge accounting:
Losses arising during the year.. ¥ (914) ¥(1,070) $ (9,718)
Reclassification adjustments to
profit or loss .......ccooooviiiiin. 478 502 5,082
Amount before income
tax effect . (435) (567) (4,625)
Income tax effect . 154 137 1,637
Total oo ¥ (281) ¥ (429) $ (2,987)
Land revaluation excess:
Reclassification adjustments to
profit or 1oss ......coooovoviciiicie
Amount before income tax effect ..
Income tax effect..........c.ccoo.c.. ¥ 988
Total coeeeeee e ¥ 088
Total other comprehensive
TNICOIIIC oo ¥10.034 ¥5371 $106,687

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The reconciliation of cash and due from banks in the consolidated balance
sheets to cash and cash equivalents at March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars

2013 2012 2013
Cash and due from banks.......... ¥59.807 ¥42 204 $635,906
Less deposits in other banks
except for the Bank of Japan..... (1,845) (1,506) (19,617)
Cash and cash equivalents,
end of year ..o ¥57,961 ¥40,697 $616,278
LEASES

Total lease payments under finance leases for the years ended March 31,2013
and 2012, were ¥1 million ($10 thousand) and ¥14 million, respectively.

Pro forma Information of Leased Property Whose Lease Inception Was
before March 31, 2008.

ASBJ Statement No. 13, “Accounting Standard for Lease Transactions” re-
quires that all finance lease transactions should be capitalized to recognize
lease assets and lease obligations in the balance sheet. However, the ASB]
Statement No. 13 permits leases without ownership transfer of the leased
property to the lessee and whose lease inception was before March 31,
2008, to continue to be accounted for as operating lease transactions if cer-
tain “as if capitalized” information is disclosed in the note to the financial
statements. The Companies accounted for such leases as operating lease
transactions. Pro forma information of leased property whose lease incep-
tion was before March 31, 2008 such as acquisition cost, accumulated
depreciation, obligations under finance leases, depreciation expense, inter-
est expense and other information of finance leases that do not transfer



ownership of the leased property to the lessee on an “as if capitalized” basis
was as follows:

- Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013

Acquisition cost ¥60
Accumulated depreciation ......... 59
Net leased property.................... ¥ 1
Obligations under finance leases:
. Thousands of
Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Due within one year.................. ¥1
Due after one year
Total.... ¥1

Depreciation expense and interest expense under finance leases:

e Thousands of
Millions of Yen U.S. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Depreciation expense ............... ¥1 ¥13 $10
Interest eXpense......................... 0 0 0

Depreciation expense and interest expense, which are not reflected in
the accompanying consolidated statement of income, are computed by the
straight-line method and the interest method, respectively.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

(1) Bank Policy for Financial Instruments
The Bank’s operations mainly include accepting deposits, providing loans,
discounting bills, and buying and selling marketable securities and other
financial instruments. Through these activities, the Bank holds substantial
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject to fluctuations in
interest rates. To protect itself from the negative effects of interest rate
fluctuations, the Bank conducts derivative transactions as part of its asset
and liability management (ALM) activities.

In addition, the consolidated subsidiaries that engage in leasing and credit
card businesses handle financial instruments as their principal business.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

Of the principal financial assets held by the Companies, loans are sub-
ject to credit risk, or default on the part of the customer. The Companies
hold trading account securities and investment securities, for holding to
maturity and for purely trading purposes, as well as to promote business
activities. These securities are subject to issuer credit risk, interest rate fluc-
tuation risk and market price fluctuation risk.

Of financial liabilities, deposits and borrowed money are subject to li-
quidity risk, or the possibility that the Companies may become unable to
meet payment obligations when due in the event that they become unable
to utilize markets in certain circumstances.

Among derivative transactions, the Bank employs interest rate swap
transactions to hedge risk using ALM. To offset the risk of interest rate
increases, the Bank employs variable receipt/fixed payment interest rate
swap transactions on loans bearing long-term, fixed rates of interest, and
securities.

With respect to currencies, the Bank employs currency swap transac-
tions, forward exchange forward contracts and coupon swap transactions,
primarily to hedge the exchange rate fluctuation risks on foreign currency
assets and liabilities.

The Bank engages in bond futures transactions, mainly as part of its
dealing operations.

With regard to the methods of hedge accounting for interest risks on
financial assets and liabilities, the Bank employs deferred hedge account-
ing as provided in JICPA Industry Audit Committee Report No. 24. To
evaluate hedging effectiveness, for hedges designed to offset market fluc-
tuations, the Bank performs specified evaluations of hedged loans at indi-
vidual hedge stages grouped by (remaining) term.

The consolidated subsidiaries do not conduct derivative transactions.

(3) Risk Management for Financial Instruments

Credit risk management

The Bank has in place various provisions, including a Credit Risk Manage-
ment Policy and Credit Risk Management Provisions. These provisions,
which extent beyond lending activities and include market transactions
and off-balance-sheet assets, are in place to manage credit risks related to
all manner of banking operations. For each activity, the Bank conducts
credit screenings, manages credit limits, manages credit information and
employs an internal rating system. The Bank also has in place a credit man-
agement system to support management improvements and handle loans
that have become delinquent or present collection difficulties. The consoli-
dated subsidiaries also have in place various credit risk management and
other provisions. They act in accordance with these provisions to manage
credit risks appropriately.

To manage these credit risks, the Companies have established credit risk
management divisions, including screening divisions, credit management
divisions and problem loan management divisions. The Bank’s Credit Risk
Management Division takes overall responsibility for credit risk manage-
ment, including the status of credit risk and accompanying problems.

With regard to credit screening, the Bank’s Audit Division checks the
Credit Risk Management Division and consolidated subsidiaries’ risk man-
agement divisions to ascertain the appropriateness of credit risk manage-
ment.

Market risk management

The Bank has in place a system for managing market risk. All items that
require market risk management, including deposit and loan transactions,
market transactions and off-balance-sheet transactions, are managed in ac-
cordance with the Bank’s Market Risk Management Policy and Market Risk
Management Provisions. The ALM divisions manage market risk related to
deposits and loans, while market-related divisions mainly manage market
risk related to market transactions. The Bank’s Risk Management Division
provides comprehensive reports to the Risk Management Committee indi-
cating risk amounts, stress test results and other information. Market Risk
Management Policies and Provisions are also in place at consolidated sub-
sidiaries, in line with each company’s risk profile. In this manner, systems
are in place to ensure the appropriate management of market risk.

The market risk management divisions of the Companies manage mar-
ket risks in this way and the Bank’s Risk Management Division serves as
the central division for the management of market risk and addressing
related problems.

With regard to audits of market risk management, the Audit Division
performs checks to determine the appropriateness of market risk management.

(Quantitative information concerning market risks)

Major financial instruments held by the Bank, which are subject to the
primary risk parameters such as interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk,
are loans, securities (held-to-maturity debt securities and other securities),
deposits and negotiable certificates of deposit, and interest rate swap trans-
actions in derivative transactions.

For these financial assets and financial liabilities, the Bank employs
quantitative analysis to manage interest rate risk and price fluctuation risk
by determining the impact on profits or losses that they will have after
specific periods of time, using a statistically forecast fluctuation band for
interest rates. Value at Risk (VaR) is used to calculate the impact amount.

The covariance method (holding period of three months (six months
for strategic holdings), confidence interval of 99%, observation period of
one year) is used for securities, whereas for instruments other than securi-
ties, such as deposits and loans, VaR is calculated using the Monte Carlo
simulation method (holding period of three months, confidence interval of
99%, observation period of five years).

As of March 31, 2013, the Bank’s market risk (estimated loss value) on
major financial instruments was ¥24,825 million ($263,955 thousand).
Of this amount, ¥14,755 million ($156,884 thousand) was attributable to
securities and ¥10,070 million ($107,070 thousand) was attributable to
instruments other than securities, such as deposits and loans.
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The Bank also conducts back-testing, comparing the VaR calculated us-
ing this model with actual profits or losses. During the consolidated fis-
cal year under review, back-testing demonstrated that its approximation
model was sufficiently precise to capture market risk.

However, it is important to recognize that VaR estimation is a calcula-
tion based on a statistical process, results are different depending on the
preconditions and calculation methods used.

Meanwhile, this process does not forecast maximum losses and future
market conditions may differ substantially from past conditions.

Furthermore, quantitative analysis is not applied on certain financial
instruments whose impact is immaterial nor those held by consolidated
subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk management
The Bank manages liquidity risk in accordance with its Liquidity Risk
Management Policy and Liquidity Risk Management Provisions. The In-
ternational and Securities Division manages cash on a daily basis, and the
Risk Management Division, which serves as the management division,
monitors this risk, providing comprehensive reports to the Risk Manage-
ment Committee including the status of risks, the status of assets available
for payment, the results of stress tests and other information.

With regard to audits of liquidity risk management, the Audit Division
checks to determine the appropriateness of liquidity risk management at
the International and Securities Division and Risk Management Division.

(4) Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active
markets. If a quoted price is not available, another rational valuation tech-
nique is used instead. Also please see Note 22 for the detail of fair value
for derivatives.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of Yen
Carrying Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2013 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Cash and due from banks..................... ¥ 59807 ¥ 59,807
Call 1oans...........ccoovoiveiiiiiiiieee 50,000 50,000
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities.................... 2,350 2,370 ¥ 20
Available-for-sale securities................... 1,026,555 1,026,555
Loans and bills discounted 1,635,726
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1)....... (37,745)
1,597,981 1,616,698 18,716
TOtAl oo ¥2,736,694 ¥2,755.431 ¥18,737
DEPOSILS. ..o ¥2577,829 ¥2578,564 ¥ (735)
Borrowed money...........ccocoovoveeiiiiieennn 22,922 23,096 a74)
Total ..o ¥2,600,751 ¥2,601,662 ¥ (910)
Derivative instruments (*2):
Hedge accounting is not applied ............ ¥ (4284 ¥ (4,284)
Hedge accounting is applied................... (2,251) (2.251)
TOtal oo ¥ (6,535)¥ (6,535)
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Millions of Yen

Carrying Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2012 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Cash and due from banks..................... ¥ 42204 ¥ 42204
Call 1oans...........ccocoovoieiiiieee 58,000 58,000
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities..................... 2,951 2,970 ¥ 18
Available-for-sale securities................... 967,560 967,560
Loans and bills discounted ..................... 1,622,743
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1)....... (40,538)
1,582,204 1,602,305 20,101
Total e ¥2,652921 ¥2 673,040 ¥20,119
DEPOSILS ..ttt ¥2520,402 ¥2,521,684 ¥(1,281)
Borrowed money... 32,276 32,475 (199)
Total ..o ¥2,552,678 ¥2.,554,160 ¥ (1.481)
Derivative instruments (*2):
Hedge accounting is not applied ............ ¥ (1,080) ¥ (1,080)
Hedge accounting is applied . (1,815) (1,815)
TOtAL e ¥ (2.896) ¥ (2.896)
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Carrying Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2013 Amount Value Gain (Loss)
Cash and due from banks...................... $ 635906 $ 635,906
Call 10ans. .......c.ooooiieieiiieeeeeee 531,632 531,632
Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities..................... 24,986 25,199 $ 212
Available-for-sale securities.. . 10,914,992 10,914,992
Loans and bills discounted .............. 17,392,089
Reserve for possible loan losses (*1)....... (401,329)
16,990,760 17,189,771 199,000
TOtAL e $29,098,288 $29,297,511 $199,223
DEPOSILS. ..t $27,409,133 $27,416,948  $ (7,814)
Borrowed money..........oococeceoivieiiinienns 243,721 245,571 (1,850)
TOtal .o $27,652,854 $27,662,541 $ (9,675)
Derivative instruments (*2):
Hedge accounting is not applied ............ $  (45,550) $  (45,550)
Hedge accounting is applied................... (23,934) (23,934)
Total e $  (69.484) S (69.484)

(*1) Reserve for possible loan losses relevant to loans and bills discounted have been
deducted.

(*2) Derivative instruments are disclosed in the net amount of assets and liabilities.

Cash and Due from Banks

With regard to amounts due from banks that have not matured and short-
term due from banks, as these instruments are settled within a short term
and their fair value and book value are nearly identical, their book value
is assumed as their fair value. Long-term due from banks with maturities
are segmented according to deposit period, and fair value is calculated by
discounting them to their present value, using an assumed rate of interest
on new amounts due from banks of the same type.

Call Loans

For items with a short commitment term (within three months), as their
fair value and book value are nearly identical, their book value is assumed
as their fair value.

Investment Securities

The fair value of equity securities is determined by their prices on stock
exchanges. The fair value of bonds is determined by their prices on ex-
changes or at rates indicated by financial institutions handling these trans-
actions for the Bank. The fair value of investment trusts is based on the
base value publicly disclosed.

Privately placed bonds guaranteed by the Bank are segmented according
to internal rating and term, and fair value is determined by discounting the



total amount of principal and interest by the assumed interest rate on new
issue bonds of the same type.

For information pertaining to investment securities by holding purpose,
please refer to Note 4.

Loans and Bills Discounted

As loans bearing floating rates of interest reflect market rates of interest in
the short term, unless credit conditions of the lending entity have changed
significantly after lending the loans, their fair value and book value are
nearly identical, so their book value is assumed as their fair value. Fixed-
rate loans are segmented by loan type, internal rating and period, and their
fair value is determined by discounting the total amount of principal and
interest by the assumed interest rate on new lendings of the same type.
However, for items with a short commitment term (within three months),
as their fair value and book value are nearly identical, their book value is
assumed as their fair value.

The fair value of loans lended to entities that are legal bankruptcy, vir-
tual bankruptcy or possible bankruptcy are determined according to the
current value of expected future cash flows or the amount of collateral that
is expected to be recoverable or guarantee amounts that are determined
to be recoverable. As these amounts are nearly identical to the book value
after deducting the allowance for doubtful accounts, these amounts are
assumed as their fair value.

For loans that are fully secured by collateral and that have no specified
repayment term, as in terms of their expected repayment periods and in-
terest conditions their fair value and book value are nearly identical, their
book value is assumed as their fair value.

Deposits

For demand deposits, fair value is assumed as amount to be paid when
demanded on the balance sheet date (i.e., the book value). The fair value
of time deposits is determined by segmenting such deposits by term and
discounting future cash flows to their current value. The discount rate used
is the rate of interest on new deposits of the same type. As the term on
deposits is short (within three months), their fair value and book value are
nearly identical, so their book value is assumed as their fair value.

Borrowed Money

Of borrowed money, interest rates on floating-rate borrowings reflect mar-
ket interest rates in the short term. Assuming that credit conditions of the
Companies have not changed significantly since the time of borrowing,
their fair value and book value are nearly identical, so their book value is
assumed as their fair value. Such borrowings with fixed interest rates are

(5) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual

Maturities
Millions of Yen
Due after Due after
One Year Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
March 31, 2013 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Due from banks..................... ¥ 26,279
Callloans ............................ 50,000

Investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities... ¥ 2250 ¥ 100

Available-for-sale securities .. 158,501 488,363 300,161 ¥ 7,048
Loans and bills discounted (*1).. 604,407 418,541 274,373 262,345
Total...oooooiiiiiiiieeee ¥839,189 ¥909,156 ¥574,634 ¥269,393

Millions of Yen
Due after Due after
One Year Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten Due after

March 31, 2012 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Due from banks...................... ¥ 9,902
Call loans 58,000
Investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities... 800 ¥ 2,050 ¥ 100

Available-for-sale securities .. 124,378 445426 335,990 ¥ 4,887
Loans and bills discounted (*1).. 487,605 509349 280,619 268,149

¥680,686 ¥956,825 ¥616,710 ¥273,036

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Due after Due after
One Year Five Years
Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
March 31, 2013 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Due from banks..................... $ 279415
Call loans 531,632

Investment securities:
Held-to-maturity securities...
Available-for-sale securities .. 1,685,284 5,192,589 3,191,504 $ 74,938

Loans and bills discounted (*1).. 6,426,443 4,450,196 2,917,309 2,789,420

Total....oooveiiieicieciee $8,922,796 $9,666,730 $6,109,877 $2,864,359

$ 23923 § 1,063

(*1) Excluded from the loan amount for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
were ¥76,056 million ($808,676 thousand) and ¥77,020 million in loans classified
as “possible bankruptcy”, “virtual bankruptey” and “legal bankruptey” on which
the redemption amount cannot be forecast, respectively.

(6) Maturity Analysis for Deposits with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen

R - Due after Due after
segmented by term, the total amount of principal and interest on the bor- One Year  Five Years
rowed money is divided by time period, and their present value is calculat- Due in One through Five through Ten Due after
ed by discounting according to the assumed interest rate. For items with a MarchB R 05 Yerarlles Ve A(Ea1S LEnh/eas
short commitment term (within three months), as their fair value and book ¥2,331,353  ¥244,749 *¥1,726
. . . . s ¥2331,353 ¥244,749 ¥1,726
value are nearly identical, their book value is assumed as their fair value.
Millions of Yen
Derivatives Due after Due after
S . . . .. . One Year Five Years
Fair value information for derivatives is included in Note 22. Duein One through Five through Ten Due after
March 31, 2012 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
(b) Carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair value cannot be ¥2277,815  ¥240,826 ¥1,761
reliably determined Y2277815  ¥240,826 ¥1,761
Millions of Yen igugeiidh of Thousands of U.S. Dollars
ULk Bl Due after Due after
2013 2012 2013 .
- — One Year Five Years
Equity securities..........c....c........ ¥2.310 ¥2,410 $24,561 Due in One through Five through Ten  Due after
Other .......c.oocoovviiiiiiiiiie 2,269 2,002 24,125 March 31, 2013 Year or Less Years Years Ten Years
Total ..o ¥4,579 ¥4.413 $48.686 $24,788,442  $2,602,328 $18,351
$24,788,442  $2,602,328 $18,351

Please see Note 13 for annual maturities of borrowed money.
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DERIVATIVES

It is the Bank’s policy to use derivative financial instruments (“derivatives”)
primarily for the purpose of reducing market risks associated with its as-
sets and liabilities. The Bank also utilizes derivatives as a part of its trading
activities.

The Bank enters into interest rate swaps as a means of hedging its in-
terest rate risk on certain loans and investment securities. The Bank also
enters into foreign exchange forward contracts, currency swaps to hedge
exchange risk associated with its assets and liabilities denominated in for-
eign currencies.

Derivatives are subject to market risk and credit risk. Market risk is the
exposure created by potential fluctuations of market conditions, including
interest and foreign exchange rates. Credit risk is the possibility that a loss
may result from counterpart’s failure to perform under a contract. Because
the counterparties to those derivatives are limited to major financial insti-
tutions and securities companies, the Bank does not anticipate material
losses arising from credit risk.

Concerning risk management associated with derivative transactions,
the front and back offices of the trading divisions (the International and
Securities Division) are clearly separated, while the Asset and Liabilities
Management Office synthetically manages the Bank’s market risks. In this
manner, an internal monitoring system is effectively secured. Derivative
transactions entered into by the Bank have been made in accordance with
internal policies, which regulate the trading activities, and credit risk man-
agement has formal risk limits and credit lines. The Bank’s positions gains-
and-losses and other conditions are periodically reported to management.

Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied

Millions of Yen

Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2013 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
CUITency SWaps..........c.cee.... ¥31,219 ¥(3,070) ¥(3,070)
Coupon Swaps..............cccc..... 76,856  ¥56,851 69 69
Foreign currency
forward contracts:
Selling .....coovevviiiiiiiiie 32,247 112 (1,321) (1,321)
Buying..........cooooiiiii 1,681 37 37
Millions of Yen
Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2012 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
CUITENCY SWaPS.....cvoovreeerneene ¥30,166 ¥ (88) ¥ (8%
Coupon Swaps........................ 72,594  ¥33)145 60 60
Foreign currency
forward contracts:
Selling ....ccooovveiiiiii, 19,747 20 (1,055) (1,055)
Buying....................... 55 1 1
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract
Amount Due
Contract after One Fair Unrealized
March 31, 2013 Amount Year Value Gain (Loss)
CUurrency Swaps..................... $331,940 $(32,642) $(32,642)
Coupon SWaps.......c.ccoveereeeuennn 817,182 $604,476 733 733

Foreign currency

forward contracts:

342,870 1,190 (14,045) (14,045)
17,873 393 393
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Derivative Transactions to Which Hedge Accounting Is Not Applied

Millions of Yen

Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract after One Fair
March 31, 2013 Item Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps Loans and
(fixed rate payment, bills dis- ¥36,749 ¥35,919 ¥ (2,251)
floating rate receipt) .............. counted
Millions of Yen
Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract after One Fair
March 31, 2012 Item Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps Loans and
(fixed rate payment, bills dis- ¥40,029  ¥40,029 ¥ (1,815)
floating rate receipt) .............. counted
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Contract
Amount Due
Hedged Contract after One Fair
March 31, 2013 Item Amount Year Value
Interest rate swaps Loans and
(fixed rate payment, bills dis- $390,738 $381,913 $(23,934)
floating rate receipt) .............. counted

The fair value of derivative transactions is calculated by discounting
them to their present value.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives which are shown in the
above table do not represent the amounts exchanged by the parties and do
not measure the Bank’s exposure to credit or market risk.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Infor-
mation Disclosures” and ASB] Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting
Standard for Segment Information Disclosures”, an entity is required to
report financial and descriptive information about its reportable segments.
Reportable segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating
segments that meet specified criteria. Operating segments are components
of an entity about which separate financial information is available and
such information is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision
maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
Generally, segment information is required to be reported on the same ba-
sis as is used internally for evaluating operating segment performance and
deciding how to allocate resources to operating segments.

(1) Description of Reportable Segments

The Companies’ reportable segments are those for which separate financial
information is available and regular evaluation by the Board of Directors
is being performed in order to decide how management resources are al-
located and in assessing performance. The Companies concentrate on the
banking business, and also conduct other financial services including the
leasing and the credit-card business. Therefore, the Companies’ reportable
segments consist of Banking and Lease.

(2) Methods of Measurement for the Amounts of Ordinary Income, Profit,
Assets and Other Items for Each Reportable Segment

The accounting policies of each reportable segment are consistent with

those disclosed in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies”.



(3) Information about Ordinary Income, Profit, Assets and Other Items

Millions of Yen

2013
Reportable Segment
Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:

Ordinary income from external customers ...................c......... ¥ 47,503 ¥ 7,614 ¥ 55117 ¥ 1,762 ¥ 56,880 ¥ (40) ¥56,839

Intersegment ordinary iNCOME...............oeoirveinieinieiieenne 173 730 904 691 1,595 (1,595)

TOtAL ..o ¥ 47,676 ¥ 8344 ¥ 56,021 ¥ 2453 ¥ 58,475 ¥ (1,635) ¥56,839
SEGIMENT PIOFIL....o.evieiiiiiiit e ¥ 8,875 ¥ 573 ¥ 9,448 ¥ 775 ¥ 10,223 ¥ (10) ¥10,213
SEGIMETIE ASSCLS. ...ttt 2,845,134 22919 2,868,053 12,587 2,880,641 (16,036) 2,864,605
Other:

DePTECIAION......ceciei et 3,017 161 3,179 47 3,226 (0) 3,226

Total interest income....... 35,807 35 35,843 1,006 36,850 (392) 36,458

Total interest expenses 2,503 147 2,650 7 2,658 (81) 2,577

Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets...... 5,134 335 5,469 59 5,528 (13) 5,515

Gain on negative goodwill ... 621 621 749 1,371 1,371

Impairment losses of assets..............cccocooioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiins 427 427 427 427

Millions of Yen
2012
Reportable Segment
Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:

Ordinary income from external customers ...................c......... ¥ 50,962 ¥ 7468 ¥ 58431 ¥ 1,860 ¥ 60,291 ¥ (305) ¥ 59,986

Intersegment ordinary iNCOME............ccooovereieiiiiiicieieene 194 781 975 803 1,778 (1,778)

TOAL. .o ¥ 51,156 ¥ 8249 ¥ 59406 ¥2664 ¥ 62070 ¥ (2,083) ¥ 59986
SeGMENT PIOfIL. ...ttt ¥ 11,954 ¥ 507 ¥ 12462 ¥ 697 ¥ 13159 e (61) ¥ 13,098
SEGIMETIE ASSCLS. ...ttt 2,761,448 22,028 2,783,476 12,241 2,795,718 (13,800) 2,781,917
Other:

Depreciation...........ccooiiiiiiiiiii i 3,103 287 3,390 43 3,433 3,433

Total interest income...... 37,912 16 37,928 1,068 38,996 (391) 38,605

Total interest expenses 2,820 175 2,996 5 3,002 93) 2,908

Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets...... 5,962 200 6,162 42 6,204 (45) 6,159

Impairment losses Of aSsets...........ccocoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiin. 1,231 1,231 1,231 1,231

Thousands of U.S. Dollars
2013
Reportable Segment
Banking Lease Total Other Total Reconciliations  Consolidated
Ordinary income:

Ordinary income from external customers ..............c.............. $ 505,082 $ 80,956 $ 586,039 $ 18,734 $ 604,784 $ (425) $ 604,348

Intersegment ordinary iNCOME............c..oooirveiiieiiiiiiienne 1,839 7,761 9,611 7,347 16,959 (16,959)

TOtAL oo $ 506921 $ 88,718 $ 595,651 $ 26,081 $§ 621,743 $ (17384 $ 604,348
Segment profit . $ 94,364 $ 6,092 $§ 100,457 $ 8240 $ 108,697 $ (106) $ 108,591
Segment assets 30,251,291 243,689 30,494,981 133,833 30,628,825 (170,505) 30,458,320
Other:

DePTECIAION......cieiiii it 32,078 1,711 33,801 499 34,300 (0) 34,300

Total interest income... 380,723 372 381,105 10,696 391,812 (4,167) 387,644

Total interest expenses 26,613 1,562 28,176 74 28,261 (861) 27,400

Increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets...... 54,587 3,561 58,149 627 58,777 (138) 58,639

Gain on negative goodwill ... 6,602 6,602 7,963 14,577 14,577

Impairment 10sses Of @SSeLs............ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 4,540 4,540 4,540 4,540

Note: 1. The “Other” segment contains business that is not included in these reporting segments, such as the credit-card business.
2. Adjustment amounts for the years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:
(1) A reconciliation in ordinary income from external customers of ¥40 million ($425 thousand) and ¥305 million was made to adjust gain on reversal of reserve for possible

loan losses.

(2) Segment profit reconciliations of ¥10 million ($106 thousand) and ¥61 million were made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(3) A downward reconciliation in segment assets of ¥16,036 million ($170,505 thousand) and ¥13,800 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(4) A downward reconciliation in depreciation of ¥0 million ($0 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2013, was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(5) A downward reconciliation in total interest income of ¥392 million ($4,167 thousand) and ¥391 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(6) A downward reconciliation in total interest expenses of ¥81 million ($861 thousand) and ¥93 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
(7) A reconciliation in increase in premises and equipment and intangible assets of ¥13 million ($138 thousand) and ¥45 million was made to eliminate intersegment transactions.
3. Segment profit is reflected as an adjustment to ordinary profit on the consolidated statement of income.
4. Ordinary income represents total income less gain on negative goodwill in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended March 31, 2013.
Ordinary income represents total income less certain special income included in other income in the accompanying consolidated statement of income for the year ended

March 31, 2012.
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Related Information

(1) Information by Services

Income regarding major services for the years ended March 31, 2013 and
2012, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars
2013 2012 2013
Loan Businesses........................ ¥25,816 ¥27.376 $274,492
Securities Investment Businesses.. 13,164 11,642 139,968
Other ..o 17,858 20,966 189,877
Total....oooiiiiiiiii ¥56.839 ¥59,986 $604,348

(2) Geographical Information
(a) Ordinary income
Ordinary income from external domestic customers exceeded 90% of
total ordinary income on the consolidated statements of income for the
years ended March 31, 2013 and 2012; therefore, geographical ordinary
income information is not presented.

(b) Premises and equipment

The balance of domestic premises and equipment exceeded 90% of total
balance of premises and equipment in the consolidated balance sheets
as of March 31, 2013 and 2012; therefore, geographical premises and
equipment information is not presented.

(3) Major Customer Information

Ordinary income to a specific customer did not reach 10% of total ordi-
nary income in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended
March 31, 2013 and 2012; therefore, major customer information is not
presented.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Significant related party transactions for the year ended March 31, 2013,
were as follows:

Transactions for the Year Balance at End of Year
Millions of Thousands of ~ Millions of Thousands of
Yen U.S. Dollars Yen U.S. Dollars
Account
Related Party Classification 2013 2013
Tamanoyu  Loans and bills
Co., Lud. discounted = $ 478 L 3 478
'Sfamanoyé Loans and bills
ANgYOou 0. Jiscounted
Lid. 178 1,892 169 1,796

Note:1. The close relatives of a director of the Bank own 100% of voting rights of
Tamanoyu Co., Ltd. and Tamanoyu Sangyou Co., Ltd.
2. Terms are substantially the same as for similar transactions with third parties.
3. Amounts of transactions were reported at the average balance for the period.

There were no significant related party transactions for the year ended
March 31, 2012.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

At the Bank’s general shareholders meeting held on June 26, 2013, the
Bank’s shareholders’ approved the following.

Appropriations of Retained Earnings

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥4.00 ($0.04)

Pershare ... e S
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Independent Auditors’ Report

D I i t
e o I t e [ ] Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu LLC

Oita Kowa Building
3-4-20 Funai-cho
Oita-shi, Oita 870-0021
Japan

Tel:+81(97) 534 5880
Fax:+81(97)532 7715
www.deloitte.com/jp

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of THE OITA BANK, Ltd.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of THE OITA BANK, Ltd. (the “Bank”) and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, all expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material mis-
statement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We con-
ducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consoli-
dated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the con-
solidated financial position of THE OITA BANK, Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

Our audit also comprehended the translation of Japanese yen amounts into U.S. dollar amounts and, in our opinion,
such translation has been made in accordance with the basis stated in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
Such U.S. dollar amounts are presented solely for the convenience of readers outside Japan.

Dlolls Trwche [hopoeoe LLC

June 26, 2013
Member of

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Summary of Nonconsolidated Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

THE OITA BANK, LTD.
March 31, 2013

Thousands of

Millions of Yen US. Dollars

2013 2012 2013
ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks...........oooii e ¥ 58,588 ¥ 41426 $ 622,945
CAILLOAIIS ..ot 50,000 58,000 531,632
Commercial paper and other debt purchased ... 16,315 11,810 173,471
Trading ACCOUNL SECUTILIES . ... .eve ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt 8 66 85
Momney held TN ETUSE......oiiiiii i 4,889 4,794 51,982
TNVESIMENT SECUTTTIES ...t 1,032,346 072,147 10,976,565
Loans and bills diSCOUNTEd ..ot 1,642,040 1,627,962 17,459,223
Foreign eXChange aSSeLs....... ..ot 3,773 3,908 40,116
OURET ASSCUS......ee e 16,457 16,540 174,981
Premises and eQUIPIMEIIL ........ouiiiiiiiiiiiii i 35,824 36,405 380,903
INEANGIDIE ASSELS ...ttt e 6,363 4,950 67,655
DefeITed TAX @SSEUS. ... .ioii it 1,451 6,116 15,427
Customers’ liabilities for acceptances and gUaTrantees...............ccocooooioveriiiioiiiieiiicec e 18,140 19,962 192,876
Reserve for possible loan losses . (39,381) (42,039) (418,724)
TOTAL oo ¥2.,846,816 ¥2,762,051 $30,269,175
LIABILITIES:
DIPOSILS ... ¥2,586,146 ¥2,527,088 $27,497,565
ALl TIOTIEY ...t 17,869 5,753 189,994
Payables under securities lending transactions. ................cccocooioiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiic e 13,287 8,925 141,275
BOTTOWEM TIOTIEY ...ttt 14,625 23,668 155,502
Foreign exchange Habilities ............ocooiiiiiiiiii e 18 31 191
Other Habilities. ... .. ..o 27,082 19,322 287,953
Liability for retirement benefits..............cooiiiiiiiiii e 10,170 10,675 108,133
Reserve for reimbursement of deposits................. 1,691 1,856 17,979
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation excess 6,035 6,456 64,167
ACCEPLaNCes And GUATATILEES ..........ouiuiiitieteit ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt 18,140 19,962 192.876
TOtAl HADIEES -+ oo oo 2,695,068 2,623,741 28,655,693
EQUITY:
(T E56.343 hanes i 2012 o oo :000 sharesi ssued, 166,430 342 shares n 203 and 19,508 19,598 208,378
Capital SUTPIUS ...t 10,582 10,582 112,514
SLOCK ACQUISTLION TIGIES ...t 38 404
Retained earnings:
LAl TESETVE ...ttt 10,431 10,431 110,909
UNAPPTOPTIALEM ...ttt 80,883 76,928 860,000
Total retained earnings 91,314 87,359 970,909
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 22817 12,550 242,604
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge acCOUNting ..............cocooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e (1,454) 1,172) (15,459)
Land revaluation €XCESS........coo i 9,224 9,940 98,075
Treasury stock- at cost, 1,283,927 shares in 2013 and 1,821,929 shares in 2012 ................ (372) (548) (3,955)
TOLAL EQUILY ...t 151,748 138,309 1,613,482
TOTAL oo ¥2.846,816 ¥2,762,051 $30,269,175

Note: Amounts stated in U.S. dollars are translated from Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥94.05=U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March 31, 2013.
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Summary of Nonconsolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited)

THE OITA BANK, LTD.
Year Ended March 31, 2013

Millions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2013 2012 2013
INCOME:
Interest on:
Loans and diSCOUNTS ... ..ottt ¥25,299 ¥26,835 $268,995
10,475 11,063 111,376
48 28 510
35,822 37,928 380,882
Fees and COMMUISSIONS .......oooii e 6,789 6,942 72,185
Other OPeTAtiNg INCOIIIE .......uiiiiiiiii ettt ettt 2,253 500 23,955
Reversal of reserve for possible 10an 10SSeS. ..ot 4,139
OUheT INCOMIC ... 2,700 1,546 28,708
TOLAl INCOMIE ... 47,566 51,056 505,752
EXPENSES:
Interest on:
1,672 1,995 17,777
314 302 3,338
509 514 5,412
TOtal INLETESE EXPETISES ... vttt ettt ettt 2,495 2,812 26,528
Fees and COMIMUISSIONS ..........vioiii it 1,751 1,701 18,617
Other OPETAUILZ EXPEIISES ... ittt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt 873 1,038 9,282
Provision for possible 10an L0SSeS............ooiiiiiiiiiiii i 1,786 18,989
General and adminiStrative eXPEeNSES . ..........oouiiiiiuiiiiiiii ittt 30,647 30,988 325,858
OURET EXPEIISES. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt 1,894 4,019 20,138
TOLAl EXPEIISES ... ..t 39,449 40,561 419,447
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES ..ottt 8,116 10,494 86,294
INCOME TAXES:
CUTTOIIE ..o 3,536 816 37,597
D CTTOA .o (873) 3,726 (9,282)
TOLAl INCOMME TAXES. ... ..ot 2,663 4,543 28,314
NET INCOME ...t ¥ 5453 ¥ 5,950 $ 57,979
Yen U.S. Dollars
PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK:
BaSIC NEE TTICOTIIC . ...ttt ¥ 3290 ¥ 35.14 $ 0.34
DIlUted MO INCOITIE ... 32.86 0.34
Cash dividends applicable to the year..............ocoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 7.00 6.00 0.07

Note: Amounts stated in U.S. dollars are translated from Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥94.05=U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March 31, 2013.
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Summary of Nonconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)

THE OITA BANK, LTD.
Year Ended March 31, 2013

Thousands Millions of Yen
Outstanding Retained Earnings Unrealized ~ Deferred
Number of Gain on Loss on
Shares of Stock Available-  Derivatives
Common Common Capital Acquisition Legal Unappropri-  for-sale  under Hedge Land Revalu-  Treasury Total
Stock Stock Surplus Rights Reserve ated Securities  Accounting ation Excess Stock Equit
BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2011 168,963 ¥19,598  ¥10,582 ¥10,431  ¥71,174 ¥ 7,771 ¥ (743)  ¥9,784 ¥(740) ¥127,858
Net income 5,950 5,950
Cash dividends, ¥6.00 per share (1,028) (1,028)
Purchase of treasury stock (@) @) (1)
Disposal of treasury stock 658 0) 193 192
Transfer from land revaluation excess 832 832
Transfer to capital surplus from 0 ©)
retained earnings
Net change in the year 4779 (429) 156 4,505
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012 169,614 19,598 10,582 10,431 76,928 12,550 (1,172) 9,940 (548) 138,309
Net income 5,453 5,453
Cash dividends, ¥6.00 per share (1,013) (1,013)
Purchase of treasury stock (5,014) (1,186) (1,186)
Disposal of treasury stock 552 0) 161 161
Retirements of treasury stock (1,201) 1,201
(5,000,000 shares of common stock)
Transfer from land revaluation excess 716 716
Trang[er to capital surplus from 1201 (1.201)
retained earnings
Net change in the year ¥38 10,267 (281) (716) 9,307
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013 165,152 ¥19,598  ¥10,582 ¥38 ¥10,431 ¥80,883 ¥22817  ¥(1.454) ¥9224 ¥(372) ¥151,748
Thousands of U.S. Dollars
Retained Earnings Unrealized ~ Deferred
Gain on Loss on
Stock Available-  Derivatives
Common Capital Acquisition Legal Unappropri-  for-sale  under Hedge Land Revalu-  Treasury Total
Stock Surplus Rights Reserve ated Securities  Accounting ation Excess Stock Equity
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2012 $208378  $112,514 $110,909  $817,947  $133439  $(12,461)  $105,688 $(5,826) $1,470,590
Net income 57979 57,979
Cash dividends, $0.06 per share (10,770) (10,770)
Purchase of treasury stock (12,610) (12,610)
Disposal of treasury stock 0) 1,711 1,711
Retirements of treasury stock (12,769) 12,769
(5,000,000 shares of common stock)
Transfer from land revaluation excess 7,612 7,612
Transkr to capital surplus from 12,769 (12,769)
retained earnings
Net change in the year $404 109,165 (2,987) (7612) 08,958
BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2013 $208378  $112,514 $404  $110,909  $860,000  $242,604  $(15459) §$ 98,075 $(3,955) $1,613,482

Note: Amounts stated in U.S. dollars are translated from Japanese yen, solely for convenience, at the rate of ¥94.05=U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at March 31, 2013.
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CORPORATE DATA

HEAD OFFICE
4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Oita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 534-1111

SECURITIES & INTERNATIONAL DIVISION
4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Oita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 538-7535

Fax: (097) 532-3358

Telex: J63074

Swift: OITA JPJT

Hong Kong Representative Office
1806, Alexandra House

18 Chater Road,

Central, Hong Kong

Telephone: 852-2522-8862

Fax: 852-2522-7298

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OFFICES
Main Office

4-1, Funaimachi 3-chome, Oita 870-0021
Telephone: (097) 534-1111

Osaka Branch

8-7, Hiranomachi 1-chome,
Chuo-ku, Osaka 541-0046
Telephone: (06) 6231-6067

Saiki Branch

2-7, Jyokanishimachi,
Saiki, Oita 876-0847
Telephone: (0972) 22-3311

Tokyo Branch

3-4, Nihonbashi 2-chome,
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0027
Telephone: (03) 3273-0081

Fukuoka Branch

6-20, Nakasu 5-chome,
Hakata-ku, Fukuoka 810-0801
Telephone: (092) 281-4381

Kokura Branch

1-21, Komemachi 1-chome,
Kokurakita-ku, Kita-Kyusyu 802-0003
Telephone: (093) 521-8336

Beppu Branch

18-21, Noguchinakamachi,
Beppu, Oita 874-0932
Telephone: (0977) 21-2121

Nakatsu Branch

2-10, Toyodamachi,
Nakatsu, Oita 871-0058
Telephone: (0979) 24-2211

Tsurusaki Branch

1-12, Minami-Tsurusaki 3-chome,
Oita 870-0104

Telephone: (097) 527-2121

Hita Branch

1-2, Sanbonmatsu 1-chome,
Hita, Oita 877-0016
Telephone: (0973) 23-2101

NUMBER OF MONEY EXCHANGE OFFICES
34

NUMBER OF OFFICES BY DISTRICT

Oita Prefecture ... 92
Miyazaki Prefecture ... 2
Kumamoto Prefecture L1
Fukuoka Prefecture ...............ccocooioiinn 6

(As of July 31, 2013)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

President
Shoji Himeno

Senior Managing Director
Youichi Miura

Managing Directors
Issei Takahara
Nobuhide Shimizu
Tomiichiro Goto

Standing Auditors
Toru Hirose
Nobuhiko Iwata

Outside Auditors

Takayuki Suzuki Director, Advisor Hiroshi Kawano
Yoshito Ogura Tsunemasa Kojima
Juro Yakushiji
Directors
Tomohiro Watanabe
Hideki Eto

Masaki Kodama

Outside Directors
Norio Shimoda
Izumi Kuwano

Executive Officers
Yoshio Hirayama
Kazutoshi Hikita
Kunihiro Kikuguchi
Toshiki Hijiya
Tadashi Kimoto
Hideyuki Tanaka

(As of June 30, 2013)
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